
APPROVED 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, APRIL 13, 2026 
4:30 P.M. 

  
The Apex Planning Board met on Monday, April 13, 2026 at 4:30 PM in the Council Chamber 
at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North Carolina.  
  
This meeting was open to the public. Members of the public were able to attend this meeting 
in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The recording of 
this meeting can be viewed here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=z0vzjIUvQ8s.  
   
[ATTENDANCE]  
  
Board Members  
Keith Braswell, Chair  
Jeff Hastings, Vice-Chair (Wake County Representative)  
Steven Rhodes  
Sarah Soh  
Alyssa Byrd  
Daniel Khodaparast  
Mary Petersen (Apex Historical Society Representative)  
Kristy Yule   
Renita Stanley (Non-Voting Youth Member)  
  
Absent  
Tim Royal (ETJ Member)  
  
Town Staff  
Planning Director Dianne Khin  
Assistant Planning Director Amanda Bunce   
Senior Planner June Cowles  
Senior Planner Elise Bielen  
  
  
[COMMENCEMENT]  
  

Chair Braswell called the meeting to order at 4:30 pm. He offered an invocation and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.    
  
  
  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[ITEMS OF INFORMATION]  
  
Dianne Khin, Planning Director, shared two items of information:  

1. Changes in the Go Apex schedules and frequency and the addition of door-to-door 
service operated by GoCary. 

[SLIDE 1] 

 
2. There are additional opportunities to comment on Peak Plan 2055 at 

www.apexnc.org/peakplan until April 27, 2026.   
[SLIDE 1] 

 
 
 
[PUBLIC COMMENT]  
  

Chair Braswell opened Public Comment and invited the first speaker. 
 
First to speak was Jeff Roach with Peak Engineering Design: 
 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

“It is public forum tonight, but I am here this evening to discuss New Business Item #1. 
Since it’s a new business item, it is not a public forum item. Specifically, I want to address item 
number four in the UDO amendments. It is in reference to changing the requirements or 
standards for the Environmental Advisory Board. At present, the Environmental Advisory 
Board makes a recommendation to both the Planning Board and the Town Council on 
zonings related to environmental warm-season grasses, invasive species, and so on. There is 
currently an amendment here tonight that Board not only to make a recommendation for 
environmental conditions they would like to see implemented, but to also make a zoning 
recommendation to council based on those same conditions. So, if we as engineers or 
attorneys stand up to present a case and the Environmental Advisory Board does not feel that 
the commitment from the engineer or architect is strong enough, then they can make a 
recommendation directly to you and the Council to deny a rezoning. At present, I do not 
believe that is how they operate. They are simply an advisory board to the Council and 
Planning Board. I think it presents a lot of problems. It usurps some of the powers that you 
have. You are a very technical board. You review ordinance items. I am concerned that this 
UDO amendment will give more power to the Environmental Advisory Board to make 
recommendations for approval or denial to Council. Whether I agree or disagree with their 
motion is, I think the ordinance is very clear on the separation of powers between the 
Planning Board and Environmental Advisory Board as advisory bodies. So, it is just a concern 
on my part. I do not know if they can do it legislatively. I do not know how it works. I just see it 
on the agenda tonight and it very much concerns me that the Environmental advisory Board 
will start making recommendations if we do not agree to 27 environmental conditions. That is 
all. I appreciate you listening and giving me a minute and a half to speak.” 

 
Chair Braswell closed the Public Comment with no one else signed up to speak.  
 
 

[CONSENT]ௗ 
 
 Chair Braswell presented the minutes from March 9, 2026, meeting and asked if there 
was a motion.  
  
  A motion was made by Member Soh and seconded by Member Khodaparast to 
approve the meeting minutes from the March 9, 2026 regular meeting.  
 
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (8-0) with Member Royal absent 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[PUBLIC HEARINGS]  
  
PH1 - Rezoning Case #26CZ01 8905 Castleberry Road  
  

June Cowles, Senior Planner presented Rezoning Case #26CZ01 8905 Castleberry 
Road Tracts 10 & 11. The applicant Silver Developers, LLC along with their agent William 
Norton, Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC seeks to rezone ± 3 acres from Wake County 
Residential-80W (R-80W) to Rural Residential-Conditional Zoning (RR-CZ). The property is 
located at 8905 Castleberry Road & 0 Castleberry Road. Planning staff recommended 
approval for this rezoning. She gave the following presentation: 

 
[SLIDE 1] 

  
[SLIDE 2] 

  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 3] 

  
[SLIDE 4] 

 
[SLIDE 5] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 6] 

 
[SLIDE 7] 

 
[SLIDE 8] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 9] 

 
[SLIDE 10] 

 
[SLIDE 11] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

 Chair Braswell asked if there were any questions on this item. 
 Member Byrd confirmed that Rural Density Residential future land use is one dwelling 
unit per five acre and Rural Transition is one dwelling unit per one acre and then Low Density 
is up to three units per acre. 
 Ms. Cowell confirmed that was correct.  
 Member Petersen asked for the reason why this item wasn’t recommended in 
December.  
 Ms. Cowell said that Planning Staff stated that this needed to be lower density so that 
this is below low density residential for the land use classification.  
 Member Peterson asked if that is because the current properties are one house per 
five acres or thereabouts. 
 Ms. Cowell said that was the classification and some of the properties were lower 
than 5 acres.  
 Member Yule asked about the concerns from the owners of a tourism business 
referencing the traffic and how it would impact that business been addressed. 
 Ms. Cowell gave an overview of how the traffic would be addressed and how 
residents would access their property. She said the applicant may be able to speak more on 
this. 
 Member Byrd asked if the condition was that all driveways should come off of 
Castleberry Drive. 
 Ms. Cowell said it was. 
 Chair Braswell asked the applicant to come up and speak.  
 
 Will Norton, Jones and Cnossen Engineering, PLLC provided additional information. 
He thanked the staff for all their help and work on this project. He highlighted the low density 
rural residential going to one unit per acre maximum, the accessory dwelling unit standpoint 
from residential neighbors not wanting to have an unlimited size and unrestricted from the 
ADU, increasing the buffer from 20’ to 40’, and not building Council Drive. 
 Member Petersen asked for more information about the pump station and what was 
covered with residents. 
 Mr. Norton said that the pump station was put into place with the Lake Castleberry 
subdivision and there have been discussions with staff and there are no issue with this 
amount of the four lots because of the peaking factor of the pump station design being able 
to allow more capacity, although staff can’t say exactly how much capacity there is, they have 
assured him there is plenty of sufficient capacity for this as proposed and into the future with 
no issues as far as maintenance goes.  
  

Chair Braswell opened the Public Hearing and invited the first speaker.  
  

First to speak was Christina McAlister of 8901 Castleberry Road:  
 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

“In front of you, you probably all have pamphlets so you can read along as I do my 
three-minute spiel. You have pictures in there if you are more visual, and then you have a 
summary list of our conditions, as well as extended conditions that we are hoping will be 
considered. Good afternoon. My name is Christina McAlister. I live adjacent to the proposed 
rezoning application at 26CZ01 Castleberry Road. I would like my comments tonight to be 
understood as a request for your help in protecting our home and our farm through 
meaningful conditions included as part of this rezoning. I previously emailed a list of 
requested conditions for your consideration. I also want to be clear that we continue to 
support this land remaining rural residential, at approximately one house per two acres. As an 
adjacent property owner, I want to share what we have at 8901 Castleberry Road. It is more 
than a residence. It is an active farm, agritourism property, and educational space that has 
served Apex and Wake County families for more than 12 years. We invite the public onto our 
land for farm tours, youth camps, agricultural education, horse experiences, volunteer 
opportunities, and hands-on learning about animals and local food systems. Because of that 
special use, we are asking for the conditions that maintain a true rural edge between our 
property and future homes. We are requesting larger buffers, at a minimum of 100 feet, along 
with a stronger Type A buffer, double rows of evergreen trees, privacy fencing, and building 
orientation that places garages, driveways, lighting, and outdoor activity away from the rural 
property, such as our pastures and bedroom windows. We’re also concerned about 
additional traffic and safety for our guests and animals, regarding potential future 
construction vehicles and neighborhood traffic using our private circular driveway. For that 
reason, we have requested developer participation in entrance and exit gates for our 
property. Most importantly, we ask that future homeowners be informed through recorded 
deed notices that they are moving next to an active agricultural education farm operation that 
includes livestock, animals, sounds, smells, farm equipment, and youth programming, and 
that these activities should not be considered a nuisance. A huge concern for us is not only 
the impact construction will have on our daily lives, but also the effect it will have on our 
horses, other animals, and the farm business we have worked hard to build. My request is 
simple: please leave the zoning as rural residential, because that is what fits this area best. 
However, if the zoning moves forward, I respectfully ask that meaningful conditions be 
incorporated to maintain the rural character of the area, protect adjacent agricultural uses, 
and preserve what makes this part of Apex special. I also respectfully ask Planning staff, the 
board, and Town Council to help guide me through the condition process and how 
residential protection conditions can be incorporated before any potential rezoning approval. 
I am trying to understand and navigate the process, and I hope you can appreciate the effort I 
have put into learning, participating, and advocating for my home, farm, and community. I am 
not a developer who works on these processes every month, so I truly appreciate your 
patience, guidance, and willingness to help, as well as your time in reading our emails. Thank 
you very much for your time and consideration.” 

 
 Vice-Chair Hastings asked if this property was between rezoning and Sleepy Valley.  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

Ms. McAlister said that was correct.  She also gave an overview of the entrances of 
her property and spoke about the traffic flow and the implications for kids riding horses.  

 
Chair Braswell closed the Public Hearing with no one else signed up to speak and 

brought the item back to the Board for discussion and a possible motion. 
 
Vice-Chair Hastings asked if there was any discussion to address the light pollution 

and arrangement of the garages. 
Mr. Norton said driveways would come out on Castleberry Road and the first lot there 

was a request for the garage to be on the western side but there were concerns for doing this 
because the general grade from east to west and driveways usually sits on the high side of 
the road for drainage so there is a 40’ type B buffer and a 10-ft buffer planned now, also a row 
of evergreen trees at a type A buffer standard. He said this rezoning would be 3 houses and 
there would be standard house lighting on the outside.  

Member Soh gave a description of this area and the farms in this community and the 
charm that it has and this would be something that should be kept this way. She said this had 
been denied because it didn’t fit in that area and wasn’t consistent with the land use map and 
was leaning towards voting no to this to keep that charm and the concerns of disturbances 
for the farm animals in that community. 

Member Peterson said this was a teaching and learning farm and supported them for 
this community.  

Member Stanley said she lives in Castleberry and one of her favorite things to do is to 
walk around in that area and the area is beautiful and would like to keep this community the 
same as it is.  

Member Byrd said to be clear, this is not a vote to get rid of any farm. She asked if 
there were any considerations that the proposed road improvements along Castleberry 
would be a benefit in potentially deferring traffic from turning around on Sleepy Valley and 
support the agritourism traffic that’s headed that way. 

Member Soh said that there are more than a dozen homes on Sleepy Valley and it is 
not known if it will benefit extending the pavement a couple of feet.  

Member Rhodes said the widening of the road will also take away from the character 
of the area. 

Member Petersen said that this was denied last time it came before the Board 
because it wasn’t keeping in with rural residential and there are so few places left like this 
community, and this is a special community.  

Member Soh asked if there was information about the watershed on the property 
being close in vicinity to Jordan Lake.  

Member Petersen said this was discussed at the December meeting and it was a 
concern and it was addressed.  

Mr. Norton said the Corps land is roughly 900’ south of southern property line so that 
would be where the buffer would be and this is why nothing more considered. There is not a 
stream onsite. 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

Member Yule asked hypothetically if this property went from three houses down to 
two, would there still be a cul-de-sac and paving. 

Mr. Norton said it would not be and that there are two lots of record currently. 
Member Yule asked if they would just leave it as it is. She asked if the concern from 

the residents was about the extra house and everything that would come along with the extra 
house and that seemed senseless if it would still be paving and the extra things to go down 
one house.  

Mr. Norton said with this being a rezoning case with Apex it would be annexed into 
the Town of Apex and it has to be up to a minimum standard and what is proposed this is the 
minimum standard for a road. He said that as for trees, Apex doesn’t allow trees to be within 
their public right-of-way once the road is accepted for maintenance.  

Member Soh asked if infrastructure would include street lighting because currently 
Castleberry Road doesn’t have streetlights. 

Mr. Norton said that would be the decision of Apex. 
 
There was further discussion about where streetlights are on other streets in Apex and 

if this was not annexed this would stay in Wake County.  
 
Member Soh asked if there were currently any existing houses on the other lot. 
Mr. Norton said no, the only existing structure is on the lot to the north.  
 
Member Khodaparast asked how significant the elevation change would be that was 

mentioned. 
Mr. Norton said it wouldn’t be significant and from a rezoning standpoint it is hard to 

portray but it wouldn’t be clear-cut and mass graded.  
Member Rhodes asked if this property stayed in Wake County would this perc for 

accessory structures. 
Mr. Norton said that had not been explored but there is an existing septic system and 

with the hopes that the pump station being across the street the hope was that this would not 
ever have been an issue.  

 
Someone attending the meeting asked if she could ask a question and Chair Braswell 

said that Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Chair Braswell asked if the Board had any further questions.  
Member Petersen said there were 18 conditions listed and they should be 

considered if the Board is going to vote to approve this. She said that the idea of trying to 
keep this rural residential or even if the area is moving to rural transitional residential there 
should be some semblance of that and it is important to note if the conditions were agreed 
upon by the neighbors or the developer if the Board is saying yes to approving this, but she 
wasn’t in support of this.  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

Member Yule said the struggle was the respect for the property owner that owns the 
home or land now and what it is that the Town wants to maintain for rural character. She 
would like to respect people who came forward and asked did the Town leave this like that 
because the intent was for the road to remain gravel and there may be a compromise for this. 

Chair Braswell said that it was maybe that this was going from 5 acre lots to low 
density which allows three acres a lot which was the case in December, and this proposal is 
one step up.  

Vice-Chair Hastings said this was a difficult decision. He said the biggest concern is 
the light and encouraged the developer to meet again to discuss this. He said that currently 
with this property being in Wake County, a 3-story building could be built 10’ off Ms. 
McAlister’s property line. He said there didn’t seem to be enough consideration by the 
developers for the neighbors to address a fair amount of their concerns.  

Chair Braswell said there were some concerns addressed but not exactly was 
agreeable. He said the lighting was a concern.  

Member Yule said that it would be beneficial to both parties to try to come together 
in an agreement. She said for the right-of-way, that is an Apex requirement. 

Vice-Chair Hastings said it would be good for there to be more communication 
between the neighbors and the developers.  

Member Yule said that it has to be understood that some things may not be able to 
be fixed, for example ADU units. She said there may need to be more given and would be 
something for existing homeowners who would like to do something with their land.  
  

A motion was made by Vice-Chair Hastings and seconded by Member Soh to 
recommend denial of Rezoning Case #26CZ01 - 8905 Castleberry Road – Tracts 10 & 11. 
  
VOTE: (6-2)ௗChair Braswell and Member Byrd dissented and Member Royal absent. 
 
 Ms. Bunce went through all the Legislative Considerations stating why the Board 
recommended denial: 
 

1. Consistency with Land Use Map: Inconsistent — does not align with the adopted 
land use plan. 

2. Compatibility with Surrounding Area: Inconsistent — conflicts with the established 
character of the area and prior efforts to preserve it; insufficient justification for 
change. 

3. Supplemental Standards: Not applicable — no specific standards apply to this type of 
development. 

4. Minimization of Adverse Impacts: Inconsistent — concerns about impacts such as 
lighting and glare not being adequately addressed. 

5. Design Minimization of Environmental Impact: Consistent — proposal adequately 
addresses environmental considerations. 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

6. Impact on Public Facilities: Consistent — overall acceptable impact on roads and 
public services despite some concerns. 

7. Health, Safety, and Welfare: Consistent — no major concerns given the scale of 
development. 

8. Detrimental to Adjacent Properties: Inconsistent — potential negative impacts on 
neighboring properties, including road changes and existing agricultural uses. 

9. Not Constitute Nuisance or Hazard: Inconsistent — could create nuisance or hazard 
conditions, particularly related to traffic. 

10. Compliance with Other Ordinance Standards: Consistent — meets technical 
ordinance requirements for development. 

 
Member Byrd stated for the record that it seems these are worded in a way to inhibit 

discussions.  
 
PH2 - Rezoning Case #25CZ21 2728 Holland Road  
  

Elise Bielen, Senior Planner presented Rezoning Case #25CZ21 2728 Holland Road. 
The applicant Ardent Building, LLC along with their agent Patrick Kiernan, Jones and Cnossen 
Engineering, PLLC seeks to rezone ± 10.35 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to Medium 
Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ). The property is located at 2728 Holland 
Road. Planning staff recommended approval for this rezoning. She gave the following 
presentation: 
[SLIDE 1] 

  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

 
[SLIDE 4] 

  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 5] 

  
[SLIDE 6] 

 
[SLIDE 7] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 8] 

  
 Chair Braswell thanked Ms. Bielen for the presentation and asked if there were any 
questions from the Board. 
 Member Soh asked if there was any communication from the Hartley family about this 
proposed rezoning case. 
 Ms. Bielen said that the applicant would speak on that.  
 Member Petersen asked if the street stubs were placed for future development if the 
Hartley’s agree.  
 Ms. Bielen said that was correct.  
 Member Peterson asked what the timeline was for the Teeter property development 
to be built. 
 Ms. Bielen said that the Hartley property would have to go through the same process 
as the Teeter property. 
 Ms. Bunce said that once all of the process is completed it would be around 2 years. 
 Ms. Bielen stated that the Hartley property would have to go through the same 
process.  
 Ms. Petersen asked what happens to the affordable housing contribution since 
Planners gave recommendations for approval, specifically if the $50,000.00 offer would be 
accepted are there be other options. 
 Ms. Bielen said Planning staff make recommendations based on established criteria 
and discussions with the applicant but the final decision on affordable housing contributions 
is ultimately up to Council.  
 
 Chair Braswell asked if the applicant would like to speak.  
  
 Nil Ghosh with Morningstar Law Group introduced Corey Schmidt with Ardent 
Building and Patrick Kiernan, with Jones and Cnossen Engineering who would be presenting. 
 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

 Mr. Kiernan highlighted some of the issues that possibly would have questions, 
starting with the affordability and the compatibility with the surrounding area. He said that 
they were thoughtful about laying out the subdivision making sure the home sizes would 
match the surrounding area and gave details on how this was decided. He also gave 
information about how affordable housing was addressed. He said that the EAB made 7 
additional conditions other than the 8 that were brought and 4 of the 7 conditions were met. 
He said that this property equates more to low density and is on the lower end of a low 
density and this is as minimal as it could be while still meeting the intent of the land use map 
and meeting all of the environmental concerns and one being increasing on storm water 
control, RCA with the HOA covenants not restricting clover lawns or dormant leaf piles as 
some examples. He said this might look on the surface as a negative but given the 
recommendations on conditions it is the best that could happen with the property.  
 
 Members Byrd thanked them for speaking with neighbors. 
 Vice-Chair Hastings asked about the conversations about the Hartley property. 
 Mr. Kiernan said there were multiple conversations with the owners. He said that 
discussions about the 50-lot ordinance to address future environmental concerns which they 
addressed and the second two options were to buy the Hartley property or half of the 
property which there were discussions with the owners but ultimately their decision was not 
to sell. 
 
 Chair Braswell opened Public Hearing and with no one signed up to speak the Public 
Hearing was closed and brought the item back to the Board for discussion and a possible 
motion.  
 
 Member Byrd said these are some of the most challenging pieces of land for 
rezonings being brought before the Board in the most recent months which is an indication 
of where Apex is and approaching these little infill sites in already developed areas.  
 Chair Braswell thanked the developer for working with the neighbors. He said that 
with the 13 lots with the 1.3 units per acre it is equal to low density and hard to argue. He said 
that after discussing the affordable housing issue it should be kept consistent and the street 
connections are also extremely important and something to consider. 
 Member Soh said that more connectivity between Holland Farm and the Manors to 
the west would have been better but understood all the RCA area and the challenges. 
 Mr. Kiernan said that there would be multiple stream crossings that would have had 
to been made and valid reasons this wasn’t done.  
 Member Soh said that on the other hand it was nice not to disturb the area for 
environmental reasons.  
 Member Yule said that if there were concerns from the neighbors, they can reach out 
to let the Board or developer know.  
 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

 A motion was made by Member Petersen and seconded by Member Yule to 
recommend approval of Rezoning Case #25CZ21. 
 
VOTE: (8-0) UNANIMOUS with Member Royal absent 
   
PH3 - Rezoning Case #25CZ22 - 3100 Olive Chapel Road  
  

June Cowles, Senior Planner presented Rezoning Case #25CZ22 3100 Olive Chapel 
Road. The applicant, Joey Iannone, along with this agent William Norton, Jones & Cnossen 
Engineering, PLLC seeks to rezone ± 4.58 acres from Wake County Residential-80W (R-80W) 
& Rural Residential-Conditional Zoning (RR-CZ #23CZ09) to Office & Institutional-Conditional 
Zoning (O&I-CZ) and Rural Residential-Conditional Zoning (RR-CZ). The properties are 
located at 3100 Olive Chapel Road and 1911 Transit Trail (portion of). Planning Staff 
recommends approval of the rezoning. She gave the following presentation: 
[SLIDE 1] 

 
[SLIDE 2] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 3] 

 
[SLIDE 4] 

  
[SLIDE 5] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 6] 

  
[SLIDE 7] 

  
[SLIDE 8] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 9] 

  
[SLIDE 10] 

 
[SLIDE 11] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 12] 

 
 
 Member Yule asked if this property is approved would the 2045 plan update only 
affect this parcel or would it affect other parcels around this.  
 Ms. Cowles said it would affect only this parcel but would take a little section of 
another parcel and would change to office and institutional and it would be a recombination 
and include the zone area A the same as it is to the north. 
 Member Petersen asked to see the maps to show how close this property is to the 
American Tobacco Trail. 
 Ms. Cowles showed it on the map. 
 
 Chair Braswell asked if there were any other questions and Mr. Norton came up to 
speak.  
  

Will Norton, Jones and Cnossen Engineering, PLLC spoke on behalf of the applicant. 
He gave an overview of where the property is located, how this rezoning came about and 
overview of the project including the proposal for the 3 acres for the new Apex Fire 
Department station.  

Chair Braswell asked if the Fire Department would also include Police and 
Ambulance services or just fire. 

Mr. Norton said that it was believed to be just a Fire Department, possibly the same as 
the Fire Department off Kelly Road.  

Member Soh asked if the fire station would face Olive Chapel Road or Transit Trail. 
Mr. Norton said the garages and the bays would egress out to Olive Chapel Road.  
Member Peterson asked if the property behind this parcel was sold by the 

homeowners. 
Mr. Norton said that JVI purchased the property from the Clement family when 

Weston Reserve was developed. 
 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

Chair Braswell brought the item back to the Board for discussion. There were 
thoughts and discussions about the property.  

Vice-Chair Hastings said that the neighbors being impacted are the owners of the 
property in this case and it’s a great location. He said that from the noise and light issue there 
isn’t much around for this to be an impact.  

Member Byrd said that there isn’t anything intense uses proposed for the area. 
  

A motion was made by Member Byrd and seconded by Member Peterson to 
recommend approval Rezoning Case #25CZ22 – 3100 Olive Chapel Road.   
  
VOTE: (8-0)ௗUNANIMOUS with Member Royal absent 
 
 
[NEW BUSINESS]ௗ  
ௗ  
NB1 – Possible motion regarding various amendments to the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) 
 

Amanda Bunce, Assistant Planning Director, presented several amendments to the 
Unified Development Ordinance for approval. She gave the following presentation. 
[SLIDE 1] 

  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

 
[SLIDE 4] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 5] 

 
 Member Yule asked if the amendments would be approved individually. 
 Ms. Bunce said if there were issues with one of them, they could be separated but 
they didn’t have to have individual votes. 
 Member Byrd asked why there are exceptions in certain Florida counties. 
 Ms. Kihn said they are based on the climate zones. 
[SLIDE 6] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 7] 

 
 Member Soh asked if the businesses would need to file for a CON (Certificate of 
Need). 
 Ms. Bunce said this is just a standard sleep doctor like that is in most medical office 
parks, it’s not a hospital doing surgery and is just for observation.  
 Member Soh asked if it would allow 24 hours of operation. 
 Ms. Bunce said they aren’t always open for 24 hours but would allow staff and 
function for observing overnight.  
 
[SLIDE 8] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 9] 

 
[SLIDE 10] 

 
[SLIDE 11] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 12] 

 
 Member Byrd asked when the EAB meets and makes the recommendation from a 
timing perspective and does Planning then get it back. She said there is potential 
opportunities for there to be the continued information gap where the developer makes the 
change prior to the request going to the Council and Planning Board. 
 Ms. Bunce said there is the possibility that the EAB will end up reviewing rezonings 
twice unless the applicant comes to the EAB with a list of environmental conditions that fully 
meets the EAB’s expectations or they are able to add recommended conditions on the spot. 
If the developer is not ready to add all requested conditions at that time, they may have to 
come back for another meeting or receive a recommendation from EAB that the rezoning 
doesn’t meet legislative condition #5. The EAB meets monthly. 
 There was further discussion on the EAB and their processes for recommendations 
within the scope of that Board.  
 Member Soh asked if the EAB is a group of volunteers. 
 Ms. Bunce stated the EAB is an appointed board just like the Planning Board. 
 Member Rhodes asked if the EAB doesn’t recommend a rezoning and it comes to 
Planning Board, will it be highlighted that way and can the Planning Board still recommend 
approval and can the Town Council still approve it. 
 Ms. Bunce confirmed that this will remain similar to the process now where the EAB 
recommended conditions and whether the applicant added those conditions are provided in 
the staff report. You just receiving a recommendation indicating whether that legislative 
condition is met. What we see is that the developer is often working on which recommended 
conditions they can add after the EAB meeting. 
 Member Yule said that being clear of what the developer is being asked to do from 
the EAB and to be cognizant of the developer’s time by not making them appear multiple 
times before the EAB since that adds costs to the project.  
 Member Khodaparast asked if there were any additional legal requirements for the 
EAB like what had to be done at this current meeting with going through denials and 
explanations.  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

 Ms. Bunce said no, not to the level of involvement if there was a recommendation for 
denial like the Planning Board has to because this board has to look at each legislative 
consideration and there are requirements in state law specifically for the Planning Board and 
Town Council. She said that the EAB should be focused on environmental impacts of the 
development.  
 Member Byrd said there are UDO requirements and then additional condition 
requests that are above and beyond that can hold up from achieving a positive 
recommendation.  
 Member Rhodes asked why the EAB is being treated any different than other boards 
like for affordability. 
 Ms. Bunce said that there’s not a housing advisory board any longer and there isn’t 
another board that a rezoning has to go before. They go to EAB and then the Planning Board 
and then to Council. She said the intent is that the EAB would give a recommendation and 
then it comes to the Planning Board.  
 Board members asked if the applicant was required to make the changes. 
 Ms. Bunce said the applicant may or may not make the changes and it’s up to the 
Planning Board to look at the legislative considerations as well as the Town Council to weigh 
everything together and whether the rezoning should be approved or denied.  
 Member Petersen asked if there was a conversation with the EAB members to see if 
they wanted to do this. 
 Ms. Bunce said there was a conversation at an EAB meeting and there is a Town 
Council liaison at the meeting. 
 Member Petersen asked if the EAB meetings were open to the public. 
 Ms. Bunce said they are open to the public. 
 Member Soh asked if the Planning Board had a Town Council liaison. 
 Ms. Bunce said no that the Planning Board acts completely separate from Town 
Council.  
 Member Soh asked if the EAB process has streamlined the Planning Department 
reviews. 
 Ms. Bunce said that the EAB has existed since 2020 and the processes have been 
refined with some improvements made and they have adopted a standardized list of 
suggested zoning conditions that are offered. She said that wording has been worked 
through so that it’s legally enforceable.  
 Member Petersen asked how the EAB would need to get rezonings twice for their 
approval.  
 Ms. Bunce said that if there are recommendations at that meeting and the applicant 
wants the approval on that legislation condition, they would work on the issue and bring it 
back to the EAB. 
 Member Yule said that no one wants to come back because of time and the concern 
is that would the applicant feel like they must come back, this seems like some of the other 
things that we are suggesting and we can’t require. She said they should be thoughtful if 
there is going to be a change to the process.  



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

 Member Byrd said with all the legislation considerations at this current meeting, some 
of them were subjective. She said the timing piece of it, and with Planning doing a lot of work 
between meetings, this would be the other part of this if they have to go back to Planning 
and address staff and they’ve been recommended denial prior to the Planning Board 
meeting. 
 Ms. Bunce said this could be reflected in staff reports and worked out as how staff 
would represent this.  
 Vice-Chair Hastings said that the concern is the authority is being given to a board 
that has a liaison and they have a Council member that has an active part in the EAB 
meetings.  
 Ms. Bunce said the Council member does not vote. 
 Vice-Chair Hastings said that they can discuss and 20% of the Council is present to 
influence potentially, maybe not the current Council member but a future Council member 
could.  
 Ms. Bunce said as a reminder rezonings are legislative decisions and applicants can 
meet and talk with Council members before the public hearing, outside of the meeting.  
 Member Soh asked should item #5 be voted on separately. 
 Ms. Bunce said this one can be removed. She moved to #5 at the direction of the 
Board. 
  
[SLIDE 13] 

 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

[SLIDE 14] 

 
 Member Peterson recommended pulling item #4 out for voting.  
 
 A motion was by Member Soh and seconded by Vice-Chair Hastings to recommend 
approval of the UDO Amendment item numbers 1, 2, 3 and 5.  
 
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (8-0) with Member Royal absent 
 
 Ms. Khin asked Ms. Bunce if she had enough information on the denial of 
Amendment #4 for Council. 
  
 Ms. Bunce said that she planned to go back and watch the video and document. She 
said that it is important as the Board members are summarizing their vote to note the 
concerns of timing that the process would extend the process for applicants. 
 Member Yule added that ambiguity of process is a concern. 
 Member Byrd said that it was also a concern about the influence of a future Council 
member liaison, not a current member.  
 

A motion was made by Chair Braswell and seconded by Member Petersen to 
recommend denial of UDO Amendment #4 as presented and request that the Planning 
Board minutes from the Public Forum and New Business discussion be included with the staff 
report to Town Council.  
  
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (8-0) with Member Royal absent 
  

A motion was made by Member Soh and seconded by Vice-Chair Hastings to 
adjourn the Planning Board meeting at 6:46 PM.ௗ  
  
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (8-0) with Member Royal absent. 



APPROVED l APRIL 6, 2026 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

  
Keith Braswell  

Planning Board Chair  
  
  
Jeri Pederson  
Lead Planning Technician   
Submitted for approval by Jeri Pederson and approved on May 11, 2026.  


